
 

1 
 

 

City of Rainier 
Regular City Council Meeting 

February 7, 2022 
6 p.m. 

Rainier City Hall 

 
   

   Mayor Jerry Cole called the Regular Council Meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 

Council Present: Connie Budge, Scott Cooper, Mike Kreger and Levi 
Richardson 
 

Council Absent: Robert duPlessis and Jeremy Howell 
 

City Attorney Present: No 
 

City Staff Present: Sarah Blodgett, City Recorder; Gregg Griffith, Police 
Chief; W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator; Sue Lawrence, Public Works 
Director 

  
Flag Salute 

 
 

Additions/Deletions from the Agenda: City Administrator W. Scott 
Jorgensen said he would like to add an item under new business. The 
Community Action Team has a new program to provide water bill assistance 

to low-income residents and is asking the City to enter into an agreement in 
order to implement it. Council President Mike Kreger moved to add that item 

to the agenda. That motion was seconded by Councilor Connie Budge and 
adopted unanimously. Jorgensen also suggested that item 6c be moved up, 

as CPA Summer Sears told him she would only be available for the first half 
an hour of the meeting. Council agreed by consensus.  

 

Mayor’s Address: Mayor Jerry Cole commended the police department for its 
handling of a recent case. The district attorney’s office and other law 

enforcement partners have praised the department’s efforts.  
 

Visitor Comments: Dan Graham asked about the removal of signs on Second 
Street. Public Works Director Sue Lawrence said her department is in the 
process of ordering $2,000 worth of signs to replace the ones that were in bad 

shape. Public works has already removed and collected some of those.  
 

New Business 
a. Appointment to Council Position #2—Jorgensen said that there are two 

applicants, as one has withdrawn. Tess Poat said she moved to town in 
July 2020. She is involved with HOPE and volunteers at the thrift store. 



 

2 
 

Councilor Scott Cooper asked what she feels the city’s biggest 
deficiencies are. Poat said there were many vacant storefronts 

downtown when she first arrived but they’ve since been filled. She 
would like to see more police officers. Denise Watson said she does work 

with the senior center and serves on the Parks and Budget committees 
and is active with the Ladies of Rainier. She thinks there should have 

been more community involvement when stop signs were installed and 
replaced with speed humps. Kreger asked the applicants what their 
biggest challenges would be if serving on council. Watson said 

gathering the perspectives of long-term residents. Poat said getting to 
know everyone in town. Councilor Levi Richardson asked what skills 

the applicants will bring to improve the council. Poat said she has 
worked with student development and various committees, has been a 

project manager and done many research projects. Watson said she 
has organizational skills and attention to detail. She serves as secretary 
and treasurer for a local Kiwanis organization. Budge said council has 

scheduled a goal setting session for March 14. What needs and 
solutions will the applicants bring to the upcoming Budget Committee 

meetings? Watson said she would like to see an updated parks master 
plan, efforts to boost local tourism and more youth activities. She has 

examples from other parks in and beyond the area. Poat said she would 
like to incorporate the efforts of student organizations like the National 
Honor Society on a year-round basis. She wants to see an expansion of 

outreach to people on the verge of homelessness. Kreger said Watson 
has previously applied to council and ended up going on the Parks and 

Budget committees. He thinks council should appoint her and see if 
Poat would be interested in serving on Parks and Budget. Cooper 

concurred. Budge agreed that Poat could help on those committees. It 
would be an asset to have both applicants involved. Richardson said 
Watson has consistently attended Parks Committee meetings. Cooper 

moved to appoint Watson to the council. That motion was seconded by 
Kreger and adopted unanimously. Cole recommended that Poat be 

appointed to the Parks and Budget committees at the next council 
meeting. Watson took her oath of office and took her seat at the council 

dais.  
 

Visitor Comments: Marvin Greer said a drain was improperly installed  

across the street from his house and his basement has flooded three times.  
Jorgensen said he has the paperwork for Greer to file a claim with the city’s  

insurance and provided it to him. 
 

Consider Approval of the Consent Agenda 
Consider Approval of the January 10, 2022 Regular Council Meeting 
Minutes—Kreger moved to approve the consent agenda. That motion was 

seconded by Cooper and adopted unanimously.   
 

New Business 



 

3 
 

b. Approval of Contract with Summer Sears CPA for Accounting Services—
Cole said Sears comes highly recommended by the City of Clatskanie. 

City Recorder Sarah Blodgett said the city’s auditing firm also 
recommended her. Sears said she worked as an auditor at an Idaho 

firm before working for the City of Redmond doing government 
accounting and finance. She started her own practice and supports 

cities and special districts with audits and budgets. Cole asked what 
challenges or successes Sears sees. She said there’s a hole in the city’s 
finance function right now and pieces she can fill based on capacity. 

She can help make sure crucial functions are covered. Jorgensen said 
he ran her proposed agreement by Blodgett and Finance Clerk Elisha 

Shulda and they said it would work for them. Kreger moved to approve 
the contract. That motion was seconded by Budge and adopted 

unanimously.  
c. Audit Report Presentation—Tracy Jones from Pauly, Rogers and Co 

summarized the draft audit report that was included in the meeting 

packet and the methodologies used to conduct the audit. Cole asked if 
there were any discrepancies. Jones said the management letter has 

not yet been reviewed by the firm’s managing partner. Budge said it can 
be reviewed by council once it is completed and received. Jones said it 

should be done in the next couple of weeks.  
d. Liquor License Renewals—Kreger moved to recommend the license 

renewals. That motion was seconded by Watson and adopted 

unanimously.  
e. Planning Update—Jorgensen said that a public hearing will be 

scheduled at the next council meeting for items that have been 
recommended by the Planning Commission. They include an updated 

flood plain ordinance and a text amendment for the code in the 
Waterfront Mixed Use zone. The commission is still working on the 
language for an annexation ordinance.  

f. Senior Center Street Light—Lawrence said she’s been working with the 
city’s insurance to make a claim and expects it to be covered. The 

estimate to replace the light is $5110. Kreger moved to approve the 
expenditure to replace the light. That motion was seconded by Watson 

and adopted unanimously.  
g. Water Bill Assistance Agreement—Kreger moved to approve the 

agreement. That motion was seconded by Cooper and adopted 

unanimously.  
 

      Unfinished Business 
a. Riverfront Trail Update—Lawrence said she’s looked at multiple options  

for the decking and got estimates. One option is a concrete deck and 
the other is a trex deck with black iron handrail. She recommends the 
trex decking for $26,725. Budge moved to approve the trex decking. 

That motion was seconded by Kreger and adopted unanimously.  
b. Fox Creek Update—Lawrence said she signed the contract for the   

feasibility study work.  



 

4 
 

 c. Senior and Multigenerational Housing  
 

     Staff Report—Lawrence said she received an insurance payment for the  
     water plant repair and is working on the roof replacement. Blodgett said  

     council tablets will be coming soon. Jorgensen said he advertised the vacant  
     council position and presented former councilor Jenna Weaver with a plaque  

     and a letter thanking her for her service to the city. He engaged Sears and  
     attended Col-Pac, Rainier Oregon Historical Society and Rainier Chamber of  
     Commerce meetings and met with new state Senator Rachel Armitage.  

     Jorgensen also spoke with Congresswoman Suzanne Bonamici about federal  
     grant funding for the Veterans Way and Fox Creek projects.  

     Council Reports 
     City Calendar/Announcements 

 
      Cole adjourned the regular council meeting at 7:21 p.m.  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

_____________________________              ______________________________________ 
Mayor Jerry Cole                         W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator   

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Rainier’s Watershed Harvest Summary: 

Hot Tub C.C. 

 

Total Acres of Harvest 2021:     34 acres 

Total Volume Harvested:     914 MBF 

Total Volume per Acre:      26.88 MBF 

 

Total Gross Revenue minus the harvesting and hauling costs: 

          $514,494 

Costs: 

 Site prep pre planting:      $2,890 

 Planting and purchasing seedlings:    $8,570 

 Road maintenance costs:     $6,000 

 Burning piles:       $1,000 

 Oregon Timber tax:      $3,700 

       Total costs:  $22,160 

 

Total Net Revenue:      $492,334      

 Final notes: 

  14,000 Douglas fir 1-1 seedlings replanted: 

Estimated net revenue $491,960 vs $492,334 Total Revenue is      

within .1% margin: 

Brush Piles have been lit on fire and firewood trespass is 

happening. 



 

 

  

      

 

 

         

 

 



EXTREME ENVIRONMENTS
EXTREMELY RELIABLE

The FTS fixed Remote Automated Weather Station (RAWS) is the 
standard for remote automated weather stations used in North 
America for fire weather monitoring. It is designed specifically with 
the interests of fire and fuels management agencies for use in 
remote areas, requiring only annual service and maintenance.  
From the assembly of a new station at a remote location to yearly 
service and maintenance, the design of the FTS fixed RAWS shows 
our extensive 35 years of experience in the market.

• Every component meets or exceeds US National Fire Rating 
System standards.

• Approved, certified and serviced by the Remote Sensing Fire 
Weather Report Unit.

• (Optional) Pre-configured for fire applications and compliant with 
the Wild Land Fire Management Information database.

FIXED REMOTE AUTOMATED 
WEATHER STATION 

More Than Fire Monitoring
Being both flexible and expandable, the Fixed RAWS can be used in a variety of 
applications, from meteorology to oil and gas to land management and more.  
A RAWS can also be expanded by adding virtually any analog sensor with the 
optional SDI-AM module.

ftsinc.com

• Barometric pressure

• Soil moisture

• Ultrasonic wind speed direction

• Snow depth

• Soil temperature

• Visibility

• All-weather precipitation

• Air Quality

• Turbidity

• Pressure transducer

• Bubbler (water level)

• Multisondes

EXAMPLES OF SENSORS THAT CAN BE EASILY ADDED



Tri-leg Tower Mast
The folding mast provides 
fast, easy access to wind 
sensors. Masts are available 
in 20ft, 25ft and 10m heights. 
A winch kit is available to raise 
and lower the mast, allowing 
a single person to service 
and maintain the site without 
having to do any climbing.

Tri-leg Tower
FTS’ Tri-leg tower provides a solid 
frame to mount sensors and 
other equipment. Anchored to 
the ground, it is able to withstand 
sustained 125 mph (201 km/h) 
winds without requiring setting in a 
concrete base.

Solar Panel
Most stations operate on a battery, 
which is recharged by a solar panel. 
A 20W solar panel is most common, 
but 10W and 50W panels are 
available when needed by site-specific 
conditions.

Adjustable Legs
The three legs of the Tri-leg tower 
are adjustable in length to permit 
the tower to be installed on uneven 
ground. The feet can be anchored 
with metal stakes, or rocks can be 
piled on top of the feet.

Wind Speed and Direction Sensor
The FTS SDI RM Young Wind Monitor is a 
mechanical dual wind sensor with an SDI 
output that accurately measures wind speed 
and direction. The SDI-12 interface avoids the 
complexity of measuring the AC wind speed 
signal or the potentiometer output.

Rain Gauge (Tipping Bucket)
The RG-T rain gauge measures precipitation in 
increments of .01 inch (0.254mm), each hour.

Enclosure and Electronics
Made from durable heavy-gauge aluminum, the enclosure 
houses the Axiom datalogger and a 6-cell, 12-volt heavy  
duty battery. 

Axiom Datalogger
The Axiom Datalogger is the most rugged and durable, 
yet dead simple to use data logger available. This clever 
design, born out of our experience meeting the strict 
reliability demands of the North American fire weather 
market for over 35 years, provides an extremely low total 
cost of ownership.  

Solar Radiation Sensor (Pyronometer)
The SDI-SR-PYR Solar Radiation sensor is a 
pyranometer that measures the amount of sunlight 
exposed to fuels. It is a digital sensor with SDI-12 
digital interface output, and stores all calibration 
coefficients within the sensor. 

EON2 CS2 GOES Antenna
The EON2 CS2 requires no assembly, and 
no aiming in most locations. Rugged by 
design, it is completely sealed for marine 
environments and dome-shaped for 
superior ice/snow shedding. This one 
antenna replaces separate GOES and GPS 
antennas.

Fuel Stick
The optional FS-3 fuel stick measures 
fuel moisture and temperature. 

FEATURES   
AND BENEFITS
ZERO CIVIL WORKS COST REQUIRED
No cement or special engineering 
required. The tower provides 
exceptional strength and stability as 
a free-standing structure assembled 
with only a few hand tools. No need 
to pour a cement pad in your remote 
location!

TECHNICIAN SAFETY
Doesn’t require climbing to service 
wind sensors. The mast can be 
lowered and raised by only one 
person, making it easy to access the 
wind sensor.

EASY TO TRANSPORT
The entire structure can be shipped 
on a single 7’ x 4’ pallet. With or 
without the pallet, it can also fit in a 
pickup truck.

QUICK AND EASY TO SET UP
Assembled and anchored in one 
hour by two people, with a minimum 
of tools. Adjustable legs permit 
installation on uneven terrain.  
Full setup instructions on only two 
laminated “Quick Start” sheets.

SMART DESIGN ENSURES DATA 
INTEGRITY
By aligning one side of the triangular 
tower to true east/west, all of the 
station components requiring 
alignment will automatically be 
aligned when installed. This ensures 
sensors are optimally positioned, 
even by novice technicians.

ENVIRONMENTALLY-FRIENDLY
Set-up and takedown is generally 
unobtrusive resulting in limited 
environmental damage.

Air Temperature and Humidity Sensor
The THS-3 Air Temperature and Humidity 
Sensor is a high quality, precision temperature 
and humidity sensor housed in a durable solar 
radiation shield. An SDI version is also available. 

FIXED REMOTE AUTOMATED 
WEATHER STATION



The Axiom is the first and only fire RAWS datalogger to offer a 
waterproof, industrial-grade, daylight-readable, color integrated 
touch screen. We integrated the computer and software right into the 
datalogger, eliminating the need for field laptops and cables.

• No more wind and rain damage, low battery or “where do I put the 
laptop?” hassles.

• No complex software to install, maintain or learn.

• Graph sensor data, view current readings, profile battery performance, 
change annual rain count, and more, in any weather condition.

Rapid Site Visits
By embedding the software and user interface right into our 
sixth-generation datalogger, we were able to meet our customers’ 
predominant desire: less time spent doing site visit tasks. 

• Download years worth of data within seconds via any standard USB 
flash memory stick. Review on your PC later.

• Electronic site visit reports eliminate manual report writing.  
All activity during the site visit is recorded (included sensor serial 
number changes), and a full set of quality control documentation is 
completely automated. The file can be easily sent to WFMI/CMMS.

Extreme Ruggedness
Because reliability is paramount and any downtime means lost 
data and increased liability, the Axiom is engineered for long-term 
durability in the harshest environments with these included features. 

• Three levels of lightning protection. 

• The entire unit — the cast aluminum alloy, O-ring sealed case, 
touchscreen and all ports—is completely impervious to the 
elements. 

• Positive-locking, waterproof, color-coded, plated, corrosion 
resistant, military-style bayonet connectors.

 

 
 

Rev. 05-27-2021
ftsinc.com  |  1.800.548.4264

CANADA  1065 Henry Eng Place  |  Victoria, BC  |  V9B 6B2 
USA  1124 Fir Avenue, Suite C  |  Blaine, WA  |  98230

EXTREME ENVIRONMENTS
EXTREMELY RELIABLE

THE FTS AXIOM DATALOGGER
No laptop, no programming required.























 

 

 
    Created: 2021-11-02 17:57:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 2, Update 1) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

16.36.050 Occupying recreational vehicles. 

It is unlawful for any recreational vehicle, to be occupied, lived in or otherwise used as a residence within the 
city, unless such use is specifically approved by the city under Chapter 16.52, except a private, residentially zoned 
property is permitted to use a recreational vehicle to house guests no more than a total of ten (10) days in a 
calendar year.  

A. Recreational vehicles shall be mobile and fully operable, on inflated wheels, and licensed with the 
Department of Motor Vehicles at all times.  

B. No more than one recreational vehicle per lot shall be permitted to be stored outdoors, except for 
recreational vehicles brought to a lot by guests and for no more than a total of ten (10) days in a 
calendar year.  

C. Porches and awnings and related structural projections may not be constructed adjacent or attached 
to a recreational vehicle.  

(Ord 483, 2016; Ord. 415 § 7.94.050, 2002) 

 



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-11-02 17:57:09 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 2, Update 1) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

10.08.040 Bus, camper, motor home recreational vehicle and boat restrictions. 

A. No person shall at any time park or leave standing a camper, house trailer, motor bus, motor truck, motor 
home, boat trailer, vehicle with camper, or recreational vehicle, whether attended or unattended, on any 
public highway, public street or other public way within the city limits, for a period greater than thirty (30) 
minutes, between the hours of 12:01 a.m. and 6:00 a.m.  

B. A recreational vehicle, house trailer, or motor home may be parked on a public street longer then the period 
allowed in Section 10.08.040 (A) if;  

1. It is owned by the resident or guest of the resident of the property in front of which it is parked, and  

2. It is parked on the public street no longer than ten (10) days in any calendar year, and  

3. Such vehicle is parked in a manner, which does not interfere with traffic or create a hazard by 
obstructing the view of drivers.  

(Ord. 431, 2004; repealing Ord. 352) 

 



















CITY OF RAINIER
CASH ON HAND/GENERAL LEDGER RECONCILIATION REPORT
CHECKING ACCOUNTS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT POOL ACCOUNT
12/1/2021-12/31/2021

ACCOUNT REGISTER SUMMARY CKS/DEBITS DEP/CREDITS
Ending Balance 416,737.78
PERS Deposits - 

New Ending Balance 416,737.78 0.00 0.00 416,737.78

BANK STATEMENT SUMMARY CKS/DEBITS DEP/CREDITS
Ending Balance SHCU 760072-1 34,331.95
Ending Balance SHCU 760072-2 405,949.74
Deposits not Shown on Statement 58,106.90
Outstanding Cks and Other Debits 60,413.70
PERS Outstanding 21,237.11
PERS Adjustment
Ending Balance 440,281.69 81,650.81 58,106.90 416,737.78 0.00

LGIP STATEMENT SUMMARY
Beginning Balance 6,901,731.60
Deposits 979,284.73
Withdrawals 
Interest 2,895.58
S/C 0.05
Ending Balance 6,901,731.60 0.05 982,180.31 7,883,911.86

TOTAL CASH 8,300,649.64

GENERAL LEDGER RECONCILIATION
12/1/2021-12/31/2021

12/01/21 12/31/21
Beginning Total Total Ending

Fund Balance Revenue Expense Liabilities Balance
10 General 2,680,486.19 943,540.36 720,326.90 2,903,699.65
20 Debt 364,096.00 0.00 0.00 364,096.00
30 Sewer 375,798.05 111,422.91 41,152.63 446,068.33
40 Water 514,121.12 47,112.59 51,528.80 509,704.91
50 Timber 1,253,911.32 486,220.27 5,750.31 1,734,381.28
60 Street 353,331.94 42,433.63 7,887.59 387,877.98
65 0.00 0.00
70 0.00 0.00
81 Special Projects 267,072.90 0.00 0.00 267,072.90
83 Sewer Capital 808,372.64 52,645.00 4,555.91 856,461.73
84 Water Capital 53,178.63 343,453.76 40,899.16 355,733.23
85 Transportation Capital 420,726.44 150,000.00 185,770.66 384,955.78
90 Library Trust 90,930.84 52.11 385.10 90,597.85

General Ledger Total 7,182,026.07 8,300,649.64 0.00

Completed by:______ Date:_______ Approved by: ______ Date:________ 



CITY OF RAINIER
CASH ON HAND/GENERAL LEDGER RECONCILIATION REPORT
CHECKING ACCOUNTS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT POOL ACCOUNT
1/1/2022-1/31/2022

ACCOUNT REGISTER SUMMARY CKS/DEBITS DEP/CREDITS
Ending Balance 383,227.02
PERS Deposits - 

New Ending Balance 383,227.02 0.00 0.00 383,227.02

BANK STATEMENT SUMMARY CKS/DEBITS DEP/CREDITS
Ending Balance SHCU 760072-1 34,333.41
Ending Balance SHCU 760072-2 671,799.16
Deposits not Shown on Statement 27,191.19
Outstanding Cks and Other Debits 328,144.34
PERS Outstanding 21,952.40
PERS Adjustment
Ending Balance 706,132.57 350,096.74 27,191.19 383,227.02 0.00

LGIP STATEMENT SUMMARY
Beginning Balance 7,883,911.86
Deposits 227,567.90
Withdrawals 300,000.00
Interest 3,068.58
S/C 0.10
Ending Balance 7,883,911.86 300,000.10 230,636.48 7,814,548.24

TOTAL CASH 8,197,775.26

GENERAL LEDGER RECONCILIATION
1/1/2022-1/31/2022

01/01/22 01/31/22
Beginning Total Total Ending

Fund Balance Revenue Expense Liabilities Balance
10 General 2,903,699.65 697,920.95 471,640.47 3,129,980.13
20 Debt 364,096.00 3,637.00 360,459.00
30 Sewer 446,068.33 78,492.14 61,623.76 462,936.71
40 Water 509,704.91 124,678.22 47,914.70 586,468.43
50 Timber 1,734,381.28 3,014.27 1,796.63 1,735,598.92
60 Street 387,877.98 37,282.36 11,697.25 413,463.09
65 0.00 0.00
70 0.00 0.00
81 Special Projects 267,072.90 267,072.90
83 Sewer Capital 856,461.73 15,870.00 72,558.62 799,773.11
84 Water Capital 355,733.23 256,426.81 501,813.62 110,346.42
85 Transportation Capital 384,955.78 0.00 143,724.91 241,230.87
90 Library Trust 90,597.85 52.11 204.28 90,445.68

General Ledger Total 8,300,649.64 8,197,775.26 0.00

Completed by:______ Date:_______ Approved by: ______ Date:________ 



City of Rainier
2021/2022 Budget Year
12/31/2021 Income/Expense
Budget Compared to Actual-Major Funds

2021/2022 12/31/2021 12/31/2021
General Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,563,290 1,472,262 94.18%
Expenditures 1,778,290 698,717 39.29%

2021/2022 12/31/2021 12/31/2021
Sewer Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,468,913 591,823 40.29%
Expenditures 1,732,561 719,940 41.55%

2021/2022 12/31/2021 12/31/2021
Water Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 957,000 447,596 46.77%
Expenditures 1,235,198 495,211 40.09%

2021/2022 12/31/2021 12/31/2021
Timber Fund YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 180,000 511,480 284.16%
Expenditures 520,512 33,957 6.52%

2021/2022 12/31/2021 12/31/2021
Street Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 248,382 209,351 84.29%
Expenditures 333,065 82,978 24.91%

*Excludes Beginning Balance



City of Rainier
2020/2021 Budget Year
1/31/2022
Budget Compared to Actual-Major Funds
Budget Variance by Appropriation

2021/2022 1/31/2022 1/31/2022
General Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,563,290 1,792,511 114.66%
Expenditures

10 General Government 388,638 152,570 39.26%
20 City Building Maintenance 13,500 4,543 33.65%
30 Land Use & Development 27,425 12,707 46.33%
50 Library 68,800 5,767 8.38%
60 Attorney 7,500 6,415 85.53%
70 Finance & Administration 56,117 27,942 49.79%
80 Municipal Court 61,084 33,054 54.11%
90 Public Properties 189,483 97,539 51.48%

100 Police Department 965,743 452,072 46.81%

2021/2022 1/31/2022 1/31/2022
Sewer Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,468,913 670,282 45.63%
Expenditures
Personnel Services 454,307 248,626 54.73%
Material & Services 278,000 180,831 65.05%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00%
Transfers 956,944 352,073 36.79%
Contingencies 43,310 0 0.00%

2021/2022 1/31/2022 1/31/2022
Water Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 957,000 571,895 59.76%
Expenditures
Personnel Services 488,346 269,054 55.09%
Material & Services 192,320 111,357 57.90%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00%
Transfers 512,382 162,336 31.68%
Contingencies 42,150 0 0.00%

2021/2022 1/31/2022 1/31/2022
Timber Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 180,000 514,494 285.83%
Expenditures
Material & Services 80,400 30,160 37.51%
Capital Outlay 65,000 5,593 8.60%
Contingencies 300,000 0 0.00%
Propery Purchase Reserve 75,112 0 0.00%

2021/2022 1/31/2022 1/31/2022
Street Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 248,382 246,633 99.30%
Expenditures
Personnel Services 66,643 41,781 62.69%
Material & Services 118,150 52,894 44.77%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00%
Contingencies 2,144 0 0.00%
Transfers 146,128 0 0.00%

*Excludes Beginning Balance 



City of Rainier
2020/2021 Budget Year
12/31/2021
Budget Compared to Actual-Major Funds
Budget Variance by Appropriation

2021/2022 12/31/2021 12/31/2021
General Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,563,290 1,472,262 94.18%
Expenditures

10 General Government 388,638 143,950 37.04%
20 City Building Maintenance 13,500 3,825 28.34%
30 Land Use & Development 27,425 11,355 41.40%
50 Library 68,800 5,221 7.59%
60 Attorney 7,500 5,790 77.20%
70 Finance & Administration 56,117 24,942 44.45%
80 Municipal Court 61,084 29,381 48.10%
90 Public Properties 189,483 88,630 46.77%

100 Police Department 965,743 385,622 39.93%

2021/2022 12/31/2021 12/31/2021
Sewer Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,468,913 591,823 40.29%
Expenditures
Personnel Services 454,307 213,682 47.03%
Material & Services 278,000 154,184 55.46%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00%
Transfers 956,944 352,073 36.79%
Contingencies 43,310 0 0.00%

2021/2022 12/31/2021 12/31/2021
Water Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 957,000 447,596 46.77%
Expenditures
Personnel Services 488,346 231,233 47.35%
Material & Services 192,320 101,642 52.85%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00%
Transfers 512,382 162,336 31.68%
Contingencies 42,150 0 0.00%

2021/2022 12/31/2021 12/31/2021
Timber Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 180,000 511,480 284.16%
Expenditures
Material & Services 80,400 28,364 35.28%
Capital Outlay 65,000 5,593 8.60%
Contingencies 300,000 0 0.00%
Propery Purchase Reserve 75,112 0 0.00%

2021/2022 12/31/2021 12/31/2021
Street Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 248,382 209,351 84.29%
Expenditures
Personnel Services 66,643 36,260 54.41%
Material & Services 118,150 46,718 39.54%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00%
Contingencies 2,144 0 0.00%
Transfers 146,128 0 0.00%

*Excludes Beginning Balance 



City of Rainier
2021/2022 Budget Year
1/31/2022 Income/Expense
Budget Compared to Actual-Major Funds

2021/2022 1/31/2022 1/31/2022
General Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,563,290 1,792,511 114.66%
Expenditures 1,778,290 792,609 44.57%

2021/2022 1/31/2022 1/31/2022
Sewer Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,468,913 670,282 45.63%
Expenditures 1,732,561 781,530 45.11%

2021/2022 1/31/2022 1/31/2022
Water Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 957,000 571,895 59.76%
Expenditures 1,235,198 542,747 43.94%

2021/2022 1/31/2022 1/31/2022
Timber Fund YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 180,000 514,494 285.83%
Expenditures 520,512 35,753 6.87%

2021/2022 1/31/2022 1/31/2022
Street Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 248,382 246,633 99.30%
Expenditures 333,065 94,675 28.43%

*Excludes Beginning Balance













City Administrator Report 

March 7, 2022 Rainier Council Meeting 

 

Mayor Cole and Members of the Council, 

 

On February 2, I spoke with a representative of U.S. Senator Jeff Merkley’s office about federal 

grant funding opportunities for the Veterans Way project. I participated in a statewide League of 

Oregon Cities call two days later.  

 

Just prior to the February 7 REDCO and council meetings, I met with Paul Vogel from Columbia 

Economic Team regarding a potential economic development project in the area. On February 9, 

myself and our other department heads met with the city’s insurance representative and CIS to 

conduct a best practices assessment.  

 

I submitted written testimony the morning of February 10 for a bill that could create a pathway 

to making it easier for cities to adjust their urban growth boundaries, then contact the members 

of the House Housing Committee to urge their support for it. On February 14, I provided oral 

testimony in that committee on that bill.  

 

Also on February 10, I attended the Rainier Chamber of Commerce meeting, did my monthly 

update with the county emergency management director and conducted a meeting about code 

enforcement options with officials from the county and the City of Clatskanie.  

 

I reached out to the Oregon Transportation Committee February 16 to request documents that 

had previously been submitted to that body by the city for the improvements on Highway 30 that 

were planned back then. Having those documents will make it easier to apply for federal grant 

funding for the Veterans Way stoplight project. That afternoon, I attended a Rainier Chamber of 

Commerce board meeting and submitted the REDCO financial report and revenue and 

expenditures summary to the taxing districts that contribute to the city’s urban renewal district.  

 

On February 22, I met with Ann Bynum from the Port of Columbia County and had a follow up 

with Vogel. I participated in the oral board for the police officer position the next day and spoke 

with the Department of State Lands about enforcement on that agency’s property. Some time 

was also spent this month following up on the abatement of the nuisance at the property located 

at 313 West 7th Street. That work was started by public works February 24.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

W. Scott Jorgensen, Executive MPA 

City Administrator 

 



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF RAINIER 

 

RESOLUTION #22-03-01 

 

A RESOLUTION TO ASSESS THE COSTS FOR ABATING THE NUISANCE 

PROPERTY AT 313 WEST 7TH STREET 
 

WHEREAS, the Rainier City Council voted unanimously at its January 10, 2022 meeting to 

declare the property at 313 East E Street to be a nuisance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Rainier followed all of the processes set forth in Rainier Municipal Code 

Chapter 15.15 pertaining to Dangerous Buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City incurred a direct cost of $2883.70 for the abatement of the nuisance house 

at 313 West 7th Street; and  

 

WHEREAS, Rainier Municipal Code Chapter 15.15 enables the City of recover those costs 

through the placement of a lien on the property; 

 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of 

Rainier, Oregon that:  

 

A lien of approximately $2883.70 be placed upon the property of 313 West 7th Street to 

recover the costs incurred by the City of Rainier by the abatement of the nuisance at that 

location. A legal description of the property is attached as Exhibit A.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rainier, Oregon this _______ day 

of _________________, 2022. 

 

                                                                         Attested: 

 

 

___________________________                   ____________________________________  

Jerry Cole, Mayor                                            W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	5 CC Minutes 02072022
	6a Timber Sale Report
	7c Fixed-RAWS-Brochure
	7c Weather Station
	7d Legal Description
	7e St Helens Code Enforcement Procedures Ordinance
	7f 20220217_230409_931037_16.36.050___Occupying_recreational_vehicles
	7f 20220217_230712_639508_10.08.040___Bus__camper__motor_home_recreational_vehicle_and_boat_restrictions
	7f Sample Campers and RV Vehicles-02252022080846
	7f Sample RV Code-02252022082023
	7h Poat Application
	7i Scandale Parks Committee Application
	8 Bank Reconciliation- December 2021
	8 Bank Reconciliation- Jan 2022
	8 Budget Comparison- December 2021
	8 Budget Comparison- January 2022
	8 Budget Variance- December 2021
	8 Budget Variance- January 2022
	8 Check Register- December 2021
	8 Check Register- January 2022
	8 City Administrator Report
	Resolution 22-03-01

